Religious History
Income and Property

The tithes of the ‘rectory” of Basing were valued at £8 in 1535, and were received by
the impropriators of the parish, Magdalen College, Oxford.! In 1728, the glebe of the
rectory amounted to 32 a. of arable land dispersed throughout the common fields
and another 1 a. of arable land lying next to the churchyard.? Magdalen College was
allocated an extra 28 a. of land when the parish was inclosed in 1796, when the vicar
was allocated an extra 2 a. of glebe.? At the time of the tithe award in 1841 the glebe
of the rectory amounted to c. 72 a.* In 1851 the tithes of Basing were worth £233 and
the glebe was valued at £4.°

There was no fixed stipend for the curate of Basing in 1535.¢ The curate had a
stipend of £90 in 1832, but there was no residence within the parish.”

Religious Life

Dedicated to St Mary by the middle of the 19th century,® the church was consecrated
to St Peter and St Paul in the 16th century.’ For much of its modern history, Basing
was a dependent chapelry of the parish of Basingstoke, served by a curate appointed
by the vicar of Basingstoke. Besides the curate, there were also two chaplains and a
chantry priest serving the church in 1517,'° and still in 1520." Sir John Paulet left
provision in his will for the foundation of a chantry, possibly in connection with the
construction of the north chapel, which was to be endowed with the rectory of
Abbotstone.”? Although there was a chantry priest present in the parish in 1543,
none were recorded in 1548,* and the Hampshire visitors recorded no evidence of
chantries in the parish in the reign of Edward VI.!® The curate was presented in 1618
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for having baptised children in the parish without using the sign of the cross.!® Six
men were presented for playing bowls in the church yard in 1618.17

Although the royal arms in the church are dated 1660, the church was alleged
to have been ‘demolished and pulled downe almost to the ground” during the siege
of Basing House, and was still in a ruinous state in 1664.1 It was reported that the
seats and pulpit had been burned, and the bells and ornaments taken away, leaving
the parishioners with ‘no place to assemble together, for divine worship’.’ However,
burial and marriage registers survive from from 1655 and baptismal registers from
1671.20 The total costs of the repairs were reported to be £1,500, of which the
parishioners were only able to raise £300. A brief was issued throughout England for
the collection of money to repair the church,? but it was still ruined and shut up in
1666, and the churchwardens complained again in 1673 that the church was out of
repair.? The restoration of the church presumably dates from soon after this,
perhaps as a consequence of the succession of the Protestant 6th marquess in 1674.
The date of 1676 on one of the parish bells perhaps marks the completion of this
process.?

A new pewter plate was purchased for use in the church in 1685.2> This was
added to in 1688 with the gift of a silver chalice and a silver paten, donated by vicar
of Basingstoke from the Easter oblations of the marquess of Winchester.? The parish
retained these ornaments in the 18th century, when it also owned a flagon marked
‘B. P, but otherwise had few ornaments.” In the early 18th century there were
services twice every Sunday during the summer and once a week in the winter.?® The
tenant of the parsonage provided new communion rails in 1714.% In 1725 the curate,
John Hoyle, who also served the cure at Basingstoke and Up Nately, had no
residence in the parish.’ In 1732 the parishioners complained of the ‘most deplorable
and most unhappy condition” of ‘a people once remarkable for their zeal and duty to
God’ because of the frequent lack of services at Basing. It was uncertain whether
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services would be held in the morning and the afternoon, and parishioners were
forced to wait in the church for hours with no minister arriving. As well as the
weekly services, many of the great feasts and fasts of the church were often
neglected, including Easter, although fittingly the fast for Charles I on 30 January
was always observed in the parish which had suffered so much in his name. The
parishioners implored the bishop to rectify the situation, complaining that it had
already been presented to the archdeacon to no effect, and offered to provide a
residence for the curate at the cost of the parish.? It is not clear whether the bishop
intervened, but Hoyle continued to serve as curate at Basing until 1738.32 A new
pewter bowl inscribed with the names of the churchwardens was provided in 1740.%

Basing was served by a curate who also served the cure at Up Nately in 1788,
when the whole village was said to be conformable to the Church of England.>* At
that time, the Eucharist was celebrated at Basing three times a year. The services
were supplemented by singers accompanied by musicians playing clarinets, and the
singers were provided with a dinner at Christmas and Easter.* In 1810 the curate
officiated at both Basing and Up Nately, and lived between the two parishes, but he
did not also officiate at Basingstoke.* The church at that time was said to hold 400
people,” but extra accommodation was required within the church, and a new
gallery was erected at the west end in 1819.3% A supplementary afternoon sermon
was provided during the summer months from 1817, for which the parish paid an
extra £5 a year to the curate.* The payments were briefly stopped in 1832, but
reinstated later in that year,* and continued until 1841.* Lord Bolton and the vicar
presented new cloths and cushions for the communion table and pulpit in 1829, and
the vicar donated a new silver flagon to the parish in 1830.4> The vicar extended the
gallery in 1833, apparently for use by the singers, and provided a new organ, which
was also placed in the gallery.*® The vicar provided a new clock in 1835, and a new
bell was hung in 1838.%
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The church was restored and ‘beautified” in 1839, at a cost of £493, including a
grant of £50 from the Society for Promoting and Repairing Churches and £30 from
the Diocesan Society for Increasing Church Accommodation. The chancel was
reordered, with the construction of a new arch and the removal of the old
communion rails to the north chapel, and 40 seats were added to the existing total of
352, of which 200 were free.* The vicar purchased the Jacobean pulpit that had stood
in Basingstoke church, and installed it in the church at Basing.*” At the time of the
1851 religious census, there was accommodation for 400 within the church, and the
attendance was estimated at 220 in the morning and 130 in the afternoon.* The
church was closed for restoration again in 1874, when the south porch was removed,
and the western door made the main entrance to the church, and new seats were
placed within the church.® The total cost of the work was more than £2,800,% aided
in part with a grant of £200 from the diocese.* Services were performed in the
mornings and the evenings in the later 1870s, supplemented by music from a new
organ installed in 1878 and singing by a choir.?? In 1864, the medieval union between
Basing and Basingstoke was broken, and Basing with Up Nately became an
independent vicarage. In 1866, it acquired a new vicarage house to cater for this new
role.®

Nonconformity

There were no nonconformists reported in the parish in 1603 or in 1676.5* There were
said to be four families of Presbyterians in Basing in 1725, and two families of
Quakers, but no Baptists.®® However, the vicar reported there were no dissenters of
any denomination within the parish in 1788.5¢ In 1851, a cottage in the village was
used for meetings of independents. The meetings attracted an attendance of 50, and
the services were led by the minister of the chapel in London St, Basingstoke.>”
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Roman Catholicism, They acquired their own chapel in 1868. The Primitive
Methodists had a chapel from in 1867.5

There was a long history of recusancy within the village after the Reformation,
inspired in no small part by the Catholicism of the lords of three of the manors
within the village. Although the conservative religious view of 1st marquess of
Winchester and his successors can be suspected, the 4th marquess was the first not to
openly conform to the established church. The Byfleets, who were not resident
within the parish, were repeatedly fined for their recusancy during the late 16th
century.” The Cuffaud family, descended from the niece of Cardinal Pole, were also
noted recusants. Simeon Cuffaud was amongst those imprisoned at Winchester for
his faith in 1583.%° He was listed as being at liberty on bond in 1592,%! but as this was
after his death it may be a mistake for his successor Alexander, who was listed on
the recusant roll of 1592-3.2 An order was issued for the arrest of Alexander
Cuffaud in the aftermath of the Gunpowder Plot,% and his house was searched again
in 1609.% His grandson Matthew was fined for recusancy during the
Commonwealth,* and he was amongst those presented as a Papist by the
churchwardens in 1666.%° Henry Cuffaud’s estates were registered after the accession
of George I for his refusal to swear allegiance to the Church of England.®” Another
member of the family, John Cuffaud alias Maynard, was a Jesuit priest whose
attendance upon catholic prisoners at Chester gaol in 1716 caused his death.®

With such strength of Catholicism within the manor houses of the parish, it is
unsurprising that recusancy persisted in Basing during the 17th century. There were
13 recusants reported in Basing in 1603.% The churchwardens presented a total of
eleven papists in two presentments in 1664,7° and 13 two years later.” The
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churchwardens only presented five papists in 1673, but 27 recusants were recorded
in Basing in Bishop Compton’s census in 1676.” The succession of the Protestant 6th
marquess in 1674 and the transfer of the manors of Byfleet and Cuffauds to
Protestant lords no doubt contributed to the decline of Catholicism in the parish. In
1725 the vicar noted only two farmers in Basing who were Papists, besides the non-
resident Henry Cuffaud.” By 1788 there were said to be no Papists within the
parish.”
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